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29/10/2013

Dear Dr Benigni,

We are pleased to resubmit our MS (Cannabidivarin (CBDV) suppresses pentylenetetrazole (PTZ)-induced increases in epilepsy-related gene expression" (#2013:06:586:1:0:REVIEW)) and have made every effort to address the points you raised. The revised MS has been edited using 'track changes' so that all modifications from the original submission can be clearly seen.
You required two specific points to be addressed as follows:
1. Statistical analysis of the responder/non-responder data: this has now been conducted as requested and the manuscript and Figure 5 updated to reflect this new analysis.
2. Quantification of protein expression: (Your comment: “Second, I would study the corresponding protein expression or translocation into the nucleus of the transcription factors. If not all the proteins, at least few.) 
Gene expression was chosen as a measure because seizure induced changes are very specifically acute changes unlike protein expression changes which are slower and are most often used to examine the consequences of the disease, epilepsy. In this study, we are examining the symptom (seizure) and so mRNA expression is the appropriate bio marker, not protein expression. Moreover, the genes studied were specifically chosen due to the extensive evidence that supports their early/immediate change in expression during seizure - evidence provided in detail in the Introduction. Thus, examining protein expression in the context of the present study paradigm would be completely redundant.”
Your request that we conduct this analysis has not been supported in any objective fashion nor has our justification for the approach we have used been rebutted. This is important since to accede to your request will require recapitulation of the entire study and so the induction of seizure and, ultimately, death in numerous animals. To do this unnecessarily would be inhumane and most certainly in breach of the Home Office project licence of Dr Ben Whalley for the use of animals in seizure models (leaving us liable to criminal prosecution).
Seizure is a short term process (~30mins). This period of time is not long enough – in the overwhelming majority of cases – for changes in gene expression to manifest as downstream changes in protein expression. Thus, because the aim of the study was to use molecular markers to confirm the behaviourally assessed effects of CBDV on seizures, we examined changes in gene expression for genes linked to seizure and known to change rapidly enough to be worthwhile biomarkers. If one were studying epilepsy (the disease) over a period of days, weeks or months then protein expression would be the appropriate marker. In this case it is not and to request complete recapitulation of the experiment is unethical.
 
Thus, we have not undertaken the requested analysis for the reasons stated above. Furthermore, given that this is now the second time the request has been made, that our justification for its lack of suitability has been ignored/not addressed, we ask a final time that the editor consider the objective justification provided above and reconsider the request. 
If you are still of the same opinion, we request here that the matter be referred to a second editor, ideally a native English speaker, as described in  https://peerj.com/about/policies-and-procedures/#appeals .
 
Best wishes

Ben Whalley and Naoki Amada
 
